
 
Board of Education 

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Subcommittee 
 
 

Minutes of the Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Subcommittee meeting held on January 10, 2024 
in the Board of Education conference room, 3 Primrose Street. 
 
 C. Gilson, Chair   C. Melillo, Superintendent 
 D. Ramsey (absent)   A. Uberti, Assistant Superintendent 
 D. Linnetz    J. Briggs 
      2  Public 
 
Mr. Gilson called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Item 1 – Public Participation – None  
 
Item 2 – Superintendent’s Overview and Update 
Mr. Melillo provided a history of the DEI committee.  They developed the following five tenets of 
DEI: 

 We want to make sure all of our spaces are supportive for students; 

 We want to make sure our curriculum is infused with diverse materials; 

 We want to make sure that when we study topics our students will learn through multiple 
lenses and multiple points of view; 

 We want to ensure that harassment and bullying will never be tolerated; 

 We want to ensure that as educators, we need to provide students with multiple sides of 
all topics so they can make their own decisions on whatever they are studying. 
     

We defined the goals of the districts DEI efforts.  When Wes Johnson, our DEI Coordinator 
resigned, we hoped to fill the position with a teacher but were unable to do so.  He called Kellen 
and Jana at Nixon & Company because he worked with them in Hamden.  They developed a 
three-year plan on how they could support DEI.  A proposal was presented to the Board after 
they met with various groups.  We’ve begun work in groups engaging in professional learning 
and started modeling best practices in our schools.  We’ve spent hours crafting this program 
looking at it as educators.  DEI will be part of curriculum and instruction.  We have been very 
happy with Nixon and Co and their work in the district. 
 
Mr. Gilson asked about curriculum and the two reading programs and how DEI is imbedded in 
them. 
Mrs. Uberti said a lot of programs being developed now include reading about different cultures.  
Both reading programs do that to a degree.  Some issues in the past were due to outdated 
resources. 
 
Ms. Briggs added that it is about how they are seeing people who are different from them and 
we are trying to build awareness to allow every student to be comfortable.  Our main goal is to 
ensure teachers welcome all students so everyone should feel comfortable here.  The idea is to 
coexist together. 
 
Mrs. Uberti reported that we have gotten new materials but we also have to educate teachers 
and understand what we are trying to do and understand we are all different.  We want them to 
feel comfortable with all the various topics that come up. 
 
Mr. Gilson asked about collecting data points to see where this is making a difference. 
 



 
-2- 

 
Mr. Melillo said we can collect data from attendance, or around students taking AP courses, or 
looking student achievement subgroups to name a few.  We could also provide a climate survey 
for our students to see their experiences in the schools and where they are comfortable. 
 
Mrs. Linnetz asked when Nixon began, to which Mr. Melillo said January of 2023. 
 
Mrs. Linnetz asked if this diversity work is also around staff.  
Mr. Melillo said by State statute we need to create a committee to look at our hiring practices to 
make sure we have a more diverse workforce.   
Mrs. Linnetz noted that by March 14 the State requires us to submit a plan regarding the 
diversity of our employment population. 
 
Ms. Briggs provided an overview of their work in the district which is attached.  This year is 
focused on district messaging and how we want this work to play out.  We have equity leaders 
in each school and will address operationalizing the work.  We will provide a full update of the 
work so far at the February 22 Board meeting.   
 
Mrs. Linnetz asked who the equity leaders were and how they were chosen. 
Mr. Melillo said we had opened these positions to teachers, our school climate committee 
members, and ensured our administrators were involved in this work. 
 
Mrs. Uberti said we have two equity leaders in each school and a school climate specialist in 
each school who is either the lead teacher or an assistant principal.  Every school has a team of 
three.  The high school has a separate DEI team who reports to the school climate committee.   
 
Mr. Melillo was pleased with the way things are going and wants to do this right instead of 
quickly.  He wants to build a proactive approach to DEI and not a reactive approach and you do 
that by building an environment that does not have issues around exclusivity.   
 
Mrs. Linnetz asked if security officers were involved in the DEI discussion regarding what they 
might be called upon to deal with especially in the high school.   
Mr. Melillo said they haven’t been part of the discussion yet but will be part of the work going 
forward although our security guards don’t deal with discipline issues.   
 
Mrs. Linnetz noted that as you introduce curricula and topics there could be difficult responses 
from students that might be insensitive to the content or to other students and that educators 
would need to know how to navigate those kinds of responses from students. 
Mrs. Uberti said they have discussed having hard conversations with teachers in the classroom 
and that is being addressed. 
 
Mr. Gilson asked how you help the members of the public that don’t agree with DEI. 
Mr. Melillo would refer to the five tenants and ask a parent to tell him which one they disagreed 
with.  We are doing a disservice if we don’t expose students to diverse materials and different 
cultures because they won’t be ready to go out into society.  
 
Mrs. Linnetz asked if part of this work is preparing our principals and educators who will be at 
the front line speaking to parents why this work is important. 
 
Ms. Briggs said if teachers don’t feel they won’t be supported then they won’t be behind the 
work.  Our work this year is building the administrators capacity and to work alongside their  
 



 
-3- 

 
teachers so they all understand and feel comfortable communicating the same messages.  As 
we start to engage parents, they will see the work.  This is not about race at all but about every 
student being comfortable.  What presents a problem is when there is no consistent messaging.   
 
Mrs. Linnetz asked what was the best way this committee and the Board can support this work. 
 
Ms. Briggs said it would just be allowing us to share the work at Board meetings and that you 
are continuing to advocate for this work, which speaks volumes.  
 
Mr. Melillo said the Board’s support in this work means the world to us.  We believe we are 
moving the district in the right direction. 
 
Mr. Gilson said this won’t be easy but looks forward to supporting this. 
Mrs. Linnetz said there’s a lot to tackle and it would be important to share it with the Board and 
the public. 
 
Ms. Briggs said they will continue to provide them with documentation and updates.  
 
Mr. Gilson asked if there were plans about creating a safe space in the schools. 
 
Mr. Melillo said we had discussions about having a parent forum in the spring with the equity 
leaders. 
 
Mrs. Uberti said there’s a lot of community support for this and there hasn’t been a lot of 
pushback.  People have been very receptive.   
 
Item 4 – New Business 
MOTION: Mrs. Linnetz moved that the BOE DEI Subcommittee approve the minutes of October 
26, 2023.  Mr. Gilson seconded.  Motion passes unanimously. 
 
MOTIO: Mrs. Linnetz moved that the BOE DEI Subcommittee moved to approve the 2024 
meeting schedule.  Mr. Gilson seconded.  Motion passes unanimously. 
 
Item 5 – Public Participation – None 
 
MOTION: Mrs. Linnetz moved to adjourn.  Mr. Gilson seconded.  Motion passes unanimously. 
 
Item 6 – Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
        
 
 
  










































	1_10_24_DEI_Minutes
	1_10_24_DEI_Minutes_att

